
Agenda

Standards Committee

Date: Wednesday 1 November 2017

Time: 10.00 am

Place: Council Chamber, Town Hall

For any further information please contact the Committee 
Services Officer: 
Jennifer Thompson, Committee and Member Services Officer
Telephone: 01865 252275
Email: jthompson@oxford.gov.uk

If you intend to record the meeting, it would be helpful if you speak to the 
Committee Services Officer before the start of the meeting.



Standards Committee
Membership
Chair* 

Vice-Chair*

Members 
(with 
substitutes)

Councillor Gill Sanders

Councillor Louise Upton
Councillor Elizabeth Wade
Councillor James Fry
Councillor Susanna Pressel
Councillor Mike Rowley
Councillor Dick Wolff

Co-opted member Gordon Roper  Parish Council representative

The Council’s Independent Persons are invited to join the Committee.

The full membership is seven councillors and the quorum for this meeting is three members.  
Substitute members are permitted.
These are shown above where notification of apologies and substitutes were received before 
the agenda was published. Apologies and substitutions sent after publication will be reported 
at the meeting. 
*Substitutes for the Chair and Vice-chair do not take on these roles.

Copies of this agenda

Reference copies are available to consult in the Town Hall Reception. Agendas are published 6 
working days before the meeting and the draft minutes a few days after.

All agendas, reports and minutes are available online and can be:
- viewed on our website – mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk
- downloaded from our website
- viewed using the computers in the Customer Services, St Aldate’s, or
- subscribed to electronically by registering online at mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk

https://www.oxford.gov.uk/info/20169/council_meetings
http://mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk/ielogon.aspx?lp=1&RPID=2852798&HPID=2852798&Forms=1&META=mgSubscribeLogon


AGENDA

Pages

1  Election of Chair for 2017/18

2  Election of Vice-Chair for 2017/18

3  Apologies for Absence

4  Declarations of Interest

5  Minutes of previous meeting: Friday 18 December 2015 1 - 2

Recommendation: to approve the minutes of the last meeting as a 
correct record. 

6  Assessment Panel decision notices 2016-17 3 - 14

Purpose of report: To update the Committee on the work carried out by 
the Council’s Assessment Panel
Recommendation: That the Committee notes the decision notices issued 
by the Council’s Assessment Panel

7  Standards training 2017 report 15 - 18

Purpose of report: To update the Committee on training on the code of 
conduct and standards delivered to members in 2017 and outline 
proposals for 2018 
Recommendations: That the Committee: 
1. Notes the content and feedback of the member training on the code 

of conduct and standards delivered in 2017
2. Notes and comments on the outline of the training on the code of 

conduct and standards proposed for 2018



Councillors declaring interests 
General duty
You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item 
on the agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you.
What is a disclosable pecuniary interest?
Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your* employment; sponsorship (ie payment for 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your 
election expenses); contracts; land in the Council’s area; licenses for land in the Council’s 
area; corporate tenancies; and securities.  These declarations must be recorded in each 
councillor’s Register of Interests which is publicly available on the Council’s website.
Declaring an interest
Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a meeting, 
you must declare that you have an interest.  You should also disclose the nature as well as 
the existence of the interest.
If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after having declared it at the meeting you 
must not participate in discussion or voting on the item and must withdraw from the meeting 
whilst the matter is discussed.
Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception
Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code of 
Conduct says that a member “must serve only the public interest and must never 
improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself” and that 
“you must not place yourself in situations where your honesty and integrity may be 
questioned”.  What this means is that the matter of interests must be viewed within the 
context of the Code as a whole and regard should continue to be paid to the perception of 
the public.

*Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member her or himself but 
also those member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with as husband or wife or as if they were 
civil partners.



STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Friday 18 December 2015

COUNCILLORS PRESENT: Councillors Fry, Royce, Pressel, Sanders, Wolff, 
McCleery, Simpson and Roper.

1. ELECTION OF CHAIR TO MAY 2016

The Standards Committee elected Councillor Gill Sanders to be Chair and 
Councillor Dick Wolf to be Vice-Chair for the Council year 2015/16.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Clack (Councillor Paul 
substitute), Councillor Rowley (Councillor Coulter substitute), Chris Ballinger and 
Godfrey Cole Independent Members. 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made.

4. REVIEW OF CODE AND GUIDE TO AVOID BIAS

The Monitoring Officer submitted a report (previously circulated and now 
appended) providing an update on the review of Members Code of Conduct and 
also presenting a guide for members on avoiding bias.

The Monitoring Officer outlined the difficulty some members have in 
understanding what might lead to accusations of bias but after discussion with 
the County Monitoring Officer Group they had decided not to include this within 
the Code of Conduct but to provide a guide for members to help them make 
judgements.  This guide will form part of the compulsory Code of Conduct 
training for members.

In discussion members asked what the phrase “outspoken” meant within the 
guide.  The Monitoring Officer outlined that this was more likely to be in planning 
matters where members should always keep an open mind.

5. ASSESSMENT PANEL DECISION NOTICES MARCH 2014 TO 
DECEMBER 2015

The Monitoring Officer submitted a report (previously circulated and now 
appended) covering the work of the Assessment Panel between March 2014 and 
December 2015.  

The Monitoring Officer outlined that the small number of complaints 
demonstrated the high standards of behaviour of our Councillors, he thanked the 
Independent Members for their time and efforts in considering the complaints.  1

Agenda Item 5



He assured the Committee that Decision Notices had been sent to the 
complainant and the Councillor shortly after the Assessment Panel had made 
their decision.

The Committee asked about the handling of confidential information and if 
Councillors had a good understanding that information they might assume to 
have been said or written in confidence would have to be disclosed within 
investigations or Freedom of Information requests.  

The Monitoring Officer agreed that an assertion of confidentiality could not be 
relied upon and this area is covered in the member compulsory code of conduct 
training.  He also agreed to clarify the issue of individual data protection 
registration for Councillor during the next training sessions.

The Committee asked about the report of other complaints against the Council 
which used to be reported to this Committee.  The Monitoring Officer said that 
Council had recently agreed that serious complaints would be reported to the 
Audit and Governance Committee and that member oversight of other 
complaints was being discussed with the Board Member responsible.

6. MEMBER TRAINING IN 2015 AND PROPOSALS FOR 2016

The Committee and Members Services Officer introduced a report (previously 
circulated and now appended) outlining the improvements to member training 
and the planning arrangements for 2016/17.

The Committee welcomed the improvements and asked that we take 
opportunities to share with other local authorities where possible.  It was 
suggested that because of the increasing complexity of planning there may be a 
need to provide more detailed planning training particularly for those members 
who sit on planning committees. The Committee and Members Services 
Manager agreed to talk to the three Planning Chairs.

In response to a questions about planning training for parish councillors, 
particularly in relation to travellers, it was suggested that parish councillors 
should join the Oxfordshire Association of Parish Councils where they could 
access good quality free training.

7. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes were agreed as a true record.

The meeting started at 9.30 am and ended at 10.15 am

2



.

To: Standards Committee
Date: 1 November 2017
Report of: Acting Head of Law and Governance
Title of Report: Assessment Panel Decision Notices

Summary and recommendations
Purpose of report: To update the Committee on the work carried out by the 

Council’s Assessment Panel
Key decision: No

Recommendation: That the Committee notes the decision notices issued 
by the Council’s Assessment Panel

Appendices
Appendix 1 Decision notices published

Introduction and background 
1. In compliance with legislation relating to the standards and conduct of elected 

councillors, the Council has in place complaints handling arrangements which set 
out how a member of the public may make a formal complaint that an elected or co-
opted member of this Council, or of a Parish Council within our area, has failed to 
comply with the authority’s Members’ Code of Conduct, and set out how the 
authority will deal with allegations of a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct. 
Information is available on the Council’s website or from the Committee and 
Members’ Services team.

2. Council is responsible for appointing suitable Independent Persons for the purpose 
of considering any complaints received about possible breaches of the Code of 
Conduct, and advising the Monitoring Officer what actions should be taken. They sit 
together with the Monitoring Officer as an Assessment Panel. The Monitoring 
Officer has authority to decide the final action taken in respect of the complaint, 
having due regard to the recommendation of the Panel.

3. Council agreed on 20 July 2017 to reappoint for two years the four persons who 
have served in this role since July 2012.

4. The options open to the Assessment Panel are:  

 Investigation - refer the matter to the Monitoring Officer for formal 
investigation;

3

Agenda Item 6



 Other action - refer the matter to the Monitoring Officer for informal 
resolution; or

 No action - decide that no action should be taken in respect of the 
allegation.

5. Since the last meeting of the Standards Committee four formal complaints have 
been made against four different Members of the Oxford City Council and the 
Assessment Panel has met to consider each of these. In all of the cases it was 
decided that they did not merit investigation. In three cases no action was taken; in 
one case the Assessment Panel recommended that the Councillor make formal 
apologies. 

6. The decision is recorded in a decision notice which is sent to the complainant and 
the Councillor complained against and is published on the website. 

7. Copies of the decision notices issued on behalf of the Assessment Panel are 
attached to this report for information at Appendix 1, 2, 3 and 4. 

8. It should be noted that the Assessment Panel cannot by itself find that a councillor 
has breached the code of conduct as the evidence before them is limited. 

9. In the case where the Assessment Panel recommended requiring apologies, the 
Monitoring Officer instructed the Councillor who made full apologies within the time 
specified. 

Conclusion
10.The Committee is asked to note the complaints received and the Assessment Panel 

decisions.

Report author Jennifer Thompson

Job title Committee and Members Services Officer
Service area or department Law and Governance
Telephone 01865 252275  
e-mail jthompson@oxford.gov.uk 

4

mailto:jthompson@oxford.gov.uk


Appendix 1

Standards Complaint Decision Notice - meeting on 4 February 2016

Meeting of: Standards Assessment Panel
Jeremy Thomas (Monitoring Officer)

 Godfrey Cole (Independent Person)
Jill McCleery (Independent Person)
Ben Simpson (Independent Person)
Oxford City Council Officers
Pat Jones (Clerk)

Date of meeting: 4 February 2016
Complaint against: Councillor Roy Darke
Complainant: Mrs Elaine Bennett
Date of Complaint:                      11 January 2016 (received 11 January 2016)

Complaint
The Monitoring Officer has received a complaint from Mrs Elaine Bennett of 390 
Marston Road, Oxford that Councillor Roy Darke may have failed to comply with the 
Members’ Code of Conduct
The complainant alleges that Councillor Darke wrote a letter which was published in the 
Oxford Mail on 15th December 2015 which “contained inaccurate statements and 
personal defamation and disrespect towards myself and Betty Fletcher”
On 26th November 2015 an article “Kicking up a stink for a solution to sewage flooding”, 
was published in the Oxford Mail (page 12) about the work that Councillor Darke has 
done in his capacity as an Oxford City Councillor in respect of Headington Hill and 
Northway, in particular his work to find a resolution to the problem of repeated local foul 
water flooding in New Marston.
A letter of reply “Overdevelopment without adequate infrastructure”, by Elaine Bennett 
and Betty Fletcher was published in the Oxford Mail on 3rd December 2015. That letter 
highlighted various concerns about drainage in the area. 
A letter in response “I’ve worked to solve historic problems with surface floods”, from 
Councillor Darke was published in the Oxford Mail on 15th December.

Consideration
The Panel considered that the exchange of letters in the pages of the Oxford 
Mail constituted legitimate public debate on an issue of local importance and 
concern.

5



It is not the function of the Code of Conduct to discourage or inhibit such public 
debate which is a necessary feature of a democratic society.  Whilst the Code 
was potentially engaged the terms of the letter of reply from Councillor Darke 
published on the 15 December 2015, although robust in parts, was reasoned in 
its content so did not, in the view of the Panel, fail to treat the complainant with 
respect in that it was not personally abusive.
Decision
Having considered all of the written material provided the Monitoring Officer and 
Independent Persons were satisfied that the complaint did not merit 
investigation.
The Panel concluded that no further action was required in respect of the 
complaint.

Date published: 10 February 2016 

6



Standards Complaint Decision Notice - meeting on 3 May 2016

Meeting of: Standards Assessment Panel
Chris Ballinger (Independent Person) - Chair
Jill McCleery (Independent Person)
Ben Simpson (Independent Person)
with
Lindsay Cane (Deputy Monitoring Officer)
Oxford City Council Officers
Catherine Phythian (Clerk)

Date of meeting: 3 May 2016
Complaint against: Cllr Edward Turner
Complainant: Mr Chaka Artwell
Date of Complaint:   15 March 2016 (received by Monitoring Officer on 29 

March 2016)                 

Complaint
The complainant alleges that: 

“Councillor Turner has abused his position as a Councillor and breached each 
and all of paragraphs 1 to 12, inclusive, of the Code of Conduct” 

in that:
“Councillor Turner had no right to contact Mr & Mrs Davis, and had no right to 
“persuade” them to withdraw my address without my consent.”

Consideration
The Monitoring Officer wrote to Councillor Turner with a copy of the complaint 
and asked Councillor Turner if he would like to provide a response. Councillor 
Turner provided:

 a copy of his email dated 4 February 2016 to Council Officers explaining 
that he had spoken to Mr Davis who had indicated that he wished to 
withdraw the address to Council;

 an email statement dated 18 April 2016 to the Monitoring Officer 
detailing his view of the events relating to the allegations made by the 
complainant

The Deputy Monitoring Officer reviewed the complaint and consulted with the 
Independent Persons appointed by the City Council to advise on Standards 
complaints, at a Standards Assessment Panel meeting on 3 May 2016. The 
purpose of the Standards Assessment Panel consideration was to 
determine whether the complaint merited investigation.

7



The Independent Persons and Deputy Monitoring Officer and considered the following 
evidence at the meeting convened on 3 May 2016:  

1. Monitoring Officer’s report
2. Complaint Form
3. Members code of conduct
4. Response to complaint from Councillor Turner
5. Address submitted by Mr Artwell on behalf of Mr and Mrs Davis
6. Email from Councillor Turner
7. Email exchange between Mr Artwell and Jennifer Thompson (OCC) regarding 

speech to Council
8. Stage 1 complaint from Mr Artwell (Corporate complaints procedure)
9. Response from Jeremy Thomas (Monitoring Officer)
10. Stage 2 complaint from Mr Artwell
11. Response from the Mike Newman (OCC Officer)

Decision
Having thoroughly considered all of the written material provided to them by the 
complainant and by Councillor Turner the Standards Assessment Panel were 
satisfied that the complaint did not merit investigation.
In reaching this decision the Standards Assessment Panel had considered and 
had regard to:

 each of the allegations of breaches of the Oxford City Council Members’ 
Code of Conduct (the paragraphs 1 to 12 referred to by the 
complainant);

 the overall tenor of the Code, and each requirement of the Code as cited 
by the complainant, in particular the paragraph concerning bullying; and

 the details of the separate complaint against the Council Officer but only 
in so far as it was relevant to the determination of this complaint  

The Standards Assessment Panel concluded that no further action was required 
in respect of the complaint.

Dated: 6 May 2016

8



Standards Complaint Decision Notice - meeting on 27 July 2016

Meeting of Standards Assessment Panel
Chris Ballinger (Independent Person) 
Godfrey Cole (Independent Person) 
Jill McCleery (Independent Person)
Ben Simpson (Independent Person) - Chair
with
Lindsay Cane (Deputy Monitoring Officer)
Oxford City Council Officers
Jennifer Thompson (Clerk)

Date of meeting: 27 July 2016
Complaint against: Cllr Mike Rowley
Complainant: Mr Gregoriy Galitzine
Date of Complaint:   29 June 2016 (received by Monitoring Officer)

Complaint
The complainant states that 
 “It was shocking and disturbing to read in the Oxford Mail that Councillor Rowley was 
ejected after trying to gain entry to the town hall, the paper printed pictures of the 
councillor fighting off council security officials totally unbecoming for a person in public 
office. It was reported that the councillor was taken home by the police”.
The complainant further states that “I feel the councillor has damaged image of the 
office of a councillor and as reported why was the councillor driven home by the police? 
Are they now a taxi service for public officials?”
Consideration
The Monitoring Officer wrote to Councillor Rowley with a copy of the complaint and 
asked Councillor Rowley if he would like to provide a response. 
The Monitoring Officer collated publicly available information:

a. Complaint form;
b. An Oxford Mail article reporting the incident complained about;
c. A BBC website article mentioning the incident complained about; and 

provided a number of internal documents readily available to him:
d. three incident witness reports from Council officers
e. an incident report form from the security guard on duty;
f. a Police statement sent to the Strategic Director
g. a series of emails provided by Councillor Rowley in relation to the complaint 

that has been made including his response to the Monitoring Officer.

9



The Deputy Monitoring Officer reviewed the complaint and consulted with the 
Independent Persons appointed by the City Council to advise on Standards complaints 
at a Standards Assessment Panel meeting on 27 July 2016. The purpose of the 
Standards Assessment Panel consideration was to determine whether the 
complaint merited investigation.
The Independent Persons and Deputy Monitoring Officer considered the evidence listed 
above at the meeting held on 27 July 2016 along with the complaint form, the 
councillors’ code of conduct, and the Monitoring Officer’s report setting out the relevant 
paragraphs of the code and the options open to him,.

Decision
Having thoroughly considered all of the written material provided to them by the 
complainant, the Monitoring Officer, and Councillor Rowley, the Standards 
Assessment Panel were of the view that the events and conduct complained of would 
be best dealt with by Councillor Rowley making a formal apology. 
They noted that in his representations to the Panel and in his statements to the media 
Councillor Rowley had apologised for what happened, but there was no evidence 
before them that he had made a formal apology directly to those affected. Given the 
public nature of the incident, they were of the view there needed to be a public 
resolution to the complaint as well as a private one.
The Panel made the following decision - 
In the event that Councillor Rowley delivers 

1. a full and frank letter of apology addressed to the Town Hall and security staff 
involved, in terms to be approved by the Monitoring Officer; and

2. a full and frank statement of apology to the next ordinary meeting of Council in 
terms to be approved by the Monitoring Officer.

then as this informal resolution would be satisfactory no further action will be taken in 
relation to the complaint. 
The Panel however reserved the right that in the event that Councillor Rowley fails to 
comply with 1 above by 19 August 2016 and fails to comply with 2 above then they 
would decide whether to recommend that the complaint is to be referred for formal 
investigation.
The Panel did not comment on the decisions of Thames Valley Police as this fell 
outside their remit.
Dated: 9 August 2016

10



Standards Complaint Decision Notice - meeting on 7 March 2017

Meeting of Standards Assessment Panel
Chris Ballinger (Independent Person) 
Godfrey Cole (Independent Person) 
Jill McCleery (Independent Person)
with
Lindsay Cane (Monitoring Officer)
Oxford City Council Officers
Jennifer Thompson (Clerk)
Emma Grifiths (Laywer)

Date of meeting: 7 March 2017
Complaint against: Cllr John Tanner
Complainant: Mr Alexander Curtis
Date of Complaint:   21 February 2017 (received by Monitoring Officer)

Complaint
The complainant stated that 
 “Cllr. Tanner claimed on BBC Radio Oxford on the morning of the 20th February 2017 
that he would like to go to some of these rough sleepers and say that they are a 
disgrace. He claimed that although he didn’t think that such an action would do any 
good, “they ought to have more respect.”
This has been reported in the Oxford Mail, and was overheard by at least hundreds of 
listeners, bringing the council into disrepute. Given Cllr. Tanner’s senior position as an 
Oxford City Council Board Member and the recent controversy surrounding Oxford City 
Council’s City Centre Public Space Protection Order (PSPO), it is possible that his 
remarks have damaged public confidence in the leadership that should be shown by 
both him and the council.
Additionally, on top of showing a lack of respect towards homeless people, the 
threatening nature of Cllr. Tanner’s remarks towards the homeless of Oxford, a 
vulnerable group, could be interpreted as bullying. This is because a senior member of 
the local authority in which they reside has humiliated them and potentially caused 
significant harm to the self-confidence of individual homeless people in Oxford.
Because of each of these realities, I believe that Cllr. Tanner has breached each of the 
clauses of the Oxford City Council Member’s Code of Conduct which are outlined 
below.
8.) promote and support high standards of conduct when serving in your public post, in 
particular as characterised by the above requirements, by leadership and example in a 
way that secures or preserves public confidence.

11



9.) treat others with respect and ensure that they are aware of and comply with all legal 
obligations that apply to them as a member or co-opted member of the council and act 
within the law.
10.) must not bully any person.”

Consideration
The Monitoring Officer wrote to Councillor Tanner with a copy of the complaint and 
asked Councillor Tanner if he would like to provide a response. 
For consideration by the Independent Persons, the Monitoring Officer collated 
publicly available information including:

h. Transcript of the relevant section of the BBC Radio Oxford broadcast on 20 
February (discussion piece on Howard Bentham’s morning programme);

i. Transcript of the unsolicited apology given by Councillor Tanner at Council on 
20 February (filmed and available on the Council’s website);

j. An Oxford Mail article on 21 February reporting Cllr Tanner’s apology
1. http://www.oxfordmail.co.uk/news/15104915.Councillor_apologises_after_call

ing_beggars__a_disgrace_/ 
k. Several links to other articles and BBC Radio Facebook videos relating to the 

remarks in the broadcast (although these were not comprehensive).
and provided a number of internal documents readily available to him:

l. an email from Cllr Tanner to the Committee Services Manager to be 
circulated to all councillors apologising for his remarks;

m. an email provided by Councillor Tanner responding to the complaint including 
the text of  his apology to councillors and the text of a press release sent out 
which formed part of (e) and the article at (c)

2.
The Monitoring Officer reviewed the complaint and consulted with the Independent 
Persons appointed by the City Council to advise on Standards complaints at a meeting 
on 7 March 2017. The purpose was to determine if the complaint merited 
investigation; or to take no action; or recommend other action should be taken.
The Independent Persons and Monitoring Officer considered the evidence listed above 
along with the complaint form, the councillors’ code of conduct, and the Monitoring 
Officer’s report setting out the relevant paragraphs of the code and the options open to 
them.

Decision
Having thoroughly considered all of the material provided to them, the Standards 
Assessment Panel decided that given the particular circumstances of this case, 
including Councillor Tanner’s subsequent actions, no action should be taken in respect 
of the allegation. The Panel took the view that although Councillor Tanner’s conduct 
may be deemed to have engaged the Code of Conduct this was to a relatively minor 
degree. They were satisfied that his subsequent actions and apology allowed them to 
dismiss the matter without the need for further action. The matter did not warrant a full 
investigation.
The Panel expressed the view that given Councillor Tanner’s high profile, his status as 
a county and city councillor, and his position as a councillor invited to participate in the 

12

http://www.oxfordmail.co.uk/news/15104915.Councillor_apologises_after_calling_beggars__a_disgrace_/
http://www.oxfordmail.co.uk/news/15104915.Councillor_apologises_after_calling_beggars__a_disgrace_/


radio debate, his statements could be deemed to carry more weight and authority than 
similar statements made by a member of the public. There could therefore be 
unintended consequences resulting from an ill-considered response. However, the 
Panel noted that before he was aware of the complaint, Councillor Tanner had 
apologised formally to Council (on the day of the broadcast); had apologised by email 
to all councillors; and had issued a press release setting out his apology.
The Panel noted that by so doing, Councillor Tanner had voluntarily and speedily 
undertaken the actions the Panel would have been likely to have required of him and 
that he had taken reasonable and effective steps to make amends for the lapse in 
judgement.

The Panel made the following decision:
To note the complaint; the incident referred to; and the actions taken by Councillor 
Tanner; and to take no action. 

Dated: 14 March 2017

13



This page is intentionally left blank



To: Standards Committee
Date: 1 November 2017
Report of: Acting Head of Law and Governance
Title of Report: Member Training 

Summary and recommendations
Purpose of report: To update the Committee on training on the code of 

conduct and standards delivered to members in 2017 and 
outline proposals for 2018 

Recommendations: That the Committee: 

1. Notes the content and feedback of the member training on the code of 
conduct and standards delivered in 2017

2. Notes and comments on the outline of the training on the code of conduct 
and standards proposed for 2018 

Appendices
Appendix 1 Feedback analysis

Introduction and background 
1. Annual training in Planning, Licensing and Code of Conduct has been required for 

all Councillors for a number of years. 
2. Compulsory training in code of conduct, standards, and related topics such as data 

protection and Freedom of Information is provided for councillors each year. 
Training in Licensing is compulsory for all members of the relevant committees 
each year. Changes to the Councils Constitution agreed in 2016 changed the 
requirements for compulsory training in the basics of planning to be attended in an 
election year only.  Non-compulsory modules covering specific planning topics are 
offered throughout the year. 

3. . Most councillors have undertaken basic safeguarding training and will be offered 
this again in 2018.

4.  The agreed training programme for elected councillors is currently :

 A framework of compulsory training covering a 4 year term of office aimed at 
developing skills and knowledge useful and relevant to councillors. 

15

Agenda Item 7



 Basic training to be delivered in election years (every other year)

 Non-election years would be used to cover topics aimed at improving skills and 
knowledge.

 The course modules and outline content are subject to consultation with senior 
officers as appropriate, and with Group Leaders.

 The broad content of the compulsory (basic) and non-compulsory modules 
would be agreed between Committee and Members Services and the trainer, 
with the trainer responsible for preparation and delivery.

Outcomes for 2017 for code of conduct training
5. Training dates were arranged in April and May, with mop-up sessions in June. 2017 

is a non-election year and so training delivered was aimed at improving skills and 
knowledge.  Councillors had a choice of a 6 dates offering a training session lasting 
about 90 minutes. 

6. The Monitoring Officer delivered all the training sessions which covered reminders 
of the basics of the code, registering and declaring interests, bias and 
predetermination, code of conduct complaints, and handling Freedom of 
Information requests. Scenarios were presented which gave councillors an 
opportunity to discuss the code of conduct, interests, and potential pitfalls. All 48 
members attended code of conduct training. 

7. Four non-compulsory planning sessions are planned running through to Spring 
2018

8. Councillors can now access both public and restricted circulation papers through 
the Modgov app and an extranet site, although not all councillors find accessing 
this easy. Presentations and handouts are published there for their reference. 

9. Standard feedback forms were used to gather councillors’ views on the training. 
Feedback forms were handed in by 27 councillors.

10. Summarised feedback is shown below.  Overall the response from members is 
positive: the large majority of responses are “very good” and “good”.

16



0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Very Good Good Fair Poor

%

Content of Training

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Very Good Good Fair Poor

%

Balance between powerpoint and chance 
for discussion

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Very Good Good Fair Poor

%

Handouts

Proposals for the member training programme for 2018 – 2019
11.Proposals for the member training programme for 2018 – 2019 are in development.  

Final proposals will be presented to political group leaders and the Chief Executive 
early in the new year.

12.The member feedback on the 2016 and 2017 training was generally positive about 
the overall programme and approach; officers are also content with the number and 
content of the sessions offered.  

13.This provides a good basis for the 2018 arrangements   The programme does need 
to develop and of there will of course be some work to review and refresh the 
content of the sessions to ensure that they are topical and to make minor 
improvements to the format of the sessions and the administration arrangements.  
As 2018 is an election year some further consideration is needed to ensure that 
compulsory sessions address both the needs of new/inexperienced councillors and 
those who have attended a number of basic courses before.

14.More radical review is not considered to be obviously necessary but should this be 
the case it is suggested that this should happen to coincide with the “all out 
elections” in 2020.  That will be the opportune time to introduce new training 
arrangements to meet the needs of a new Council.  Planning and preparation for 
such a thorough review of member training would need to start in late 2018.

Non Compulsory Training offered
15.To complement the compulsory training programme in 2016 a programme of non-

compulsory training was offered to members. This covered local government 
finance, media and social media, how the council works and chairing skills.  Despite 

17



these being cited by members as useful training and a range of dates being offered 
they were not well attended. Officers will discuss with the organisation and group 
leaders a non-compulsory programme for 2018 that can produce a better outcome.

Induction proposed for after 2018 elections
16. It is important that newly elected councillors are able to be given the immediate 

information, tools and skills to get started.  A programme of induction will be 
delivered on the Monday after the election which is compulsory for all new 
councillors (councillor not in a seat prior to the election). This programme will 
include senior officer introductions and corporate priorities, advice on access into 
the organisation, how to access member funds, completion of necessary forms and 
documents and allocation and training on ICT equipment. A “Welcome Pack” will be 
given to all members on the night of the count. 

17. In addition all newly elected members will be linked with a suitable officer to help 
them through their first few months, and service areas will host any member who 
wishes to meet their teams and see first-hand what they do and how they do it.   

Briefing sessions
18.Throughout the 2017/18 and continuing into 2018/19 members are offered a 

programme of briefing sessions covering topical issues put forward by both 
members and officers.  The dates of these briefings are given to members in the 
programme of meetings at least a year in advance. These briefings are delivered by 
senior officers and the City Executive Board Portfolio Holder for the subject matter 
attends to give support and give a political perspective.  This programme has 
improved during 17/18 but attendance still remains relatively low.  A “library” of 
information is available to members who couldn’t attend.            

Conclusion
19. We continue to improve the training offer to members and encourage members to 

come forward with their views and suggestions for improvement.

Report author Pat Jones

Job title Committee and Member Services Manager
Service area or department Law and Governance
Telephone 01865 252191 
e-mail phjones@oxford.gov.uk

18


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of previous meeting: Friday 18 December 2015
	6 Assessment Panel decision notices 2016-17
	7 Standards training 2017 report

